
HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 14 October 2020

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

6 October 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any. 

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meetings. (Pages 3 - 12)

4. Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. (Pages 
13 - 20)

5. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman). 

6. Declaration of Interests: 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
 Other Interests

7. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any. (2:10 p.m.) 
(At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15).

8. Covid-19 and Community Hospitals Update. (2:15 p.m.) (Pages 21 - 32)
 Tracey Shewan - Director of Communications and Corporate Services, North Staffordshire 

Clinical Commissioning Group
 Gemma Smith – Deputy Director of Commissioning – Partnerships and Integration, North 

Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group
 Jennie Collier - Managing Director, Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Care Group, Midlands 

Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
 Katie Dale - Head of Communications, Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

9. Public Health Initiatives (Drugs and Alcohol Overview) - Tony Bullock, Staffordshire 
County Council. (3 p.m.) 

10. Work Programme. (3:30 p.m.) (Pages 33 - 34)

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below:

Public Document Pack



Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:-

i) Chairman’s items;
ii) Members items;

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) Councillor J T Jones (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Alcock Councillor C J S Atkins
Councillor B Cawley Councillor E Fallows
Councillor K Flunder Councillor I Herdman
Councillor T Holmes Councillor A Hulme
Councillor I Lawson Councillor L A Malyon
Councillor T McNicol Councillor D Price
Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley
Councillor J Salt Councillor L Swindlehurst
Councillor P Wood Councillor R Ward



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 12 FEBRUARY 2020
PRESENT: Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) 

Councillors R Alcock, C J S Atkins, B Cawley, E Fallows, K Flunder, 
I Herdman, T Holmes, A Hulme, J T Jones, I Lawson, L A Malyon, 
T McNicol, D Price, T Riley, J Salt, L Swindlehurst and P Wood

IN ATTENDANCE: I Whitehouse
G Bentley
M A Deaville
K J Jackson
I Plant
H Sheldon MBE
L D Lea
P Routledge

APOLOGIES: Councillors Bowen and Ralphs

68 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY.

There were none.

69 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING.

DECIDED: That the minutes from the meeting held on 13th November 2019 be 
APPROVED as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

70 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE HEALTHY STAFFORDSHIRE 
SELECT COMMITTEE.

DECIDED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee held on 28th October  2019 be NOTED.

71 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN).

There were no urgent items of business.

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 12 February 2020

2

72 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:

Agenda No. Member Declaring 
Interest

Nature of Interest

Agenda Item 8 – 
Midlands Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Update

Cllr P. Wood Other – Daughter is 
employed by the Trust.

Agenda Item 10 – West 
Midlands Ambulance 
Service (WMAS)

Cllr J. Jones
Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest – Employed by  
WMAS.

None Specific Cllr T. Riley
Other – Family member 
is employed by the 
NHS.

73 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY.

Question from Councillor Cawley:

Q1. I have been contacted by a resident of Leek who has told me about the 
difficulty local blood donors are having in giving blood.

He has relayed a message to me from the Operations Manager at the Blood 
Donation Service, who outlines the problems they are having finding a regular venue 
as the only one currently in use in Leek is at the High School where access is 
restricted during term time.

I gather that similar problems have been experienced in Biddulph.

As a consequence of this, have any discussions taken place between SMDC and 
relevant health authorities about alternative venues in the Moorlands, as all too 
frequently donors have to travel to Etruria to give freely of this life saving substance?

Response:  

In Cllrs Ralphs’ absence, Cllr Deaville gave the response below:

“The Blood Donation Service used to hire the Churnet Room, but not in the last 5 
years. We understand they have also used Brough Park Leisure Centre for a short 
period of time.

Two years ago, I was approached by several people at, of all places Leek Show, 
who complained that they were no longer able to donate blood at Moorlands House, 
and they asked her to investigate. Senior management were consulted and they too 
didn't know why the Service had suddenly stopped coming.

Page 4



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 12 February 2020

3

The Blood Donation Service was contacted and a representative from the 
organisation came on 21st August 2018. She said that she needed to assess the 
Churnet Room as it was considered not appropriate for their needs. The 
representative spent an hour measuring the room and asking questions, and then 
left promising to get back as soon as possible.

Since then, as far as we are aware, the Council hasn’t been approached by Blood 
Donation Service for the use of our facilities.”

By way of supplementary questions, Councillor Cawley suggested, that Leek Trestle 
Market would be a potential venue for the Blood Donation Service to hire in the 
future. Councillor Deaville responded to the effect, that this suggestion would be 
taken into account by Cabinet and Officers, as part of the current review of this 
asset. 

74 MIDLANDS PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST (MPFT) ANNUAL 
UPDATE - NEIL CARR, CHIEF EXECUTIVE. (PRESENTATION TO FOLLOW)

The Panel received a presentation which covered services provided by the MPFT to 
residents of the Moorlands and details of the progress carried out by the Trust over 
the past year.

As a foundation trust it had more financial freedom to generate a surplus and 
reinvest it in local service. Local people could become members and influence what 
the Trust did. MPFT would use capital to fund three of the integrated care hubs, 
which included the one in Leek. By the end of this financial year, the organisation 
should be able to achieve its plan to return a planned surplus of £1.752m. 

Results from the staff survey had improved. Over 60% of staff responded in each of 
the two years, which equated to approximately 5,000 colleagues. 

The Trust was proud to have been rated good by the CQC. This included a second 
visit to the urgent care services. The minor injuries unit in Leek had gone from 
required improvement to good and end of life care was now also rated as good.

Discussion took place around the numbers of staff who had been transferred to work 
from Leek Moorlands Hospital to the Bradwell Hospital and the numbers of agency 
staff employed. The officer advised that these figures could be provided after the 
meeting. The Panel also discussed the limited provision of adolescent mental heath 
care, the proposal for the hospital Cheadle to become a medical hub, re-habilitation 
services and the need for community beds.

It was also the opinion of some members that people needed to take more 
responsibility of their own heath. In response to this, the Panel wished to add an item 
to the work programme – How the Council can empower people to take 
responsibility of their health and wellbeing.

Members had their concerns in regard to the Home First approach to receive care at 
home rather than at hospital.  It was hoped that additional resources would be 
provided by the Government to ensure wrap around care for patients was robust.

The Chair thanked Neil Carr for attending the meeting.
Page 5



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 12 February 2020

4

DECIDED: 
1) That the update be received;
2) For an item to be added to the Work Programme; How the Council can 

empower people to take responsibility of their health and wellbeing.

75 ROYAL STOKE UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL (RSUH), UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS 
OF NORTH MIDLANDS NHS TRUST (UHNM) ANNUAL UPDATE - TRACY 
BULLOCK,CHIEF EXECUTIVE. (VERBAL UPDATE)

Tracy Bullock – Chief Executive Officer, Royal Stoke Hospital, provided a 
presentation, which covered the following topics:-

 University Hospitals of North Midlands (UHNM) in Numbers
 Services at UHNM
 Chief Executives Perspective
 Challenges
 Achievements

The Panel was advised that the Royal Stoke Hospital was rated in the top ten of the 
largest hospitals in the county and also had one of the busiest A&E Departments in 
the country. The wait times for patients was too long, but once admitted, patients 
received a good level of care. The Hospital had the second best major trauma 
outcomes in the country but not all services were being delivered at this level. The 4 
hour A&E target was not being met, along with the 18 week cancer referral target.
Due to this, a Quality Improvement Programme was being introduced. Staffing levels 
had been increased in the A&E Department and a new Executive Team, with an 
aspiration to improve performance, had been created. 

The Trust was currently seeking approval to come out of financial special measures 
and expected to reduce the deficit considerably by the end of March 2020. 
Recruitment was still a challenge and work to mitigate this included, new training 
programmes with universities.

Members asked questions and commented on the following:-

Stress and workload – To help to understand these issues the CEO regularly spent 
time in the A&E Department. Wellbeing Programmes, relaxation pods, Employment 
Support Advisors and Specialist Mental Health Champions were available to staff.

Re-instatement of the 24 hour A&E at Stafford – There were no aspirations at this 
time to re-instate this service.
 
Break facilities for Ambulance staff at the Royal Stoke Hospital – This would be 
looked into. 

Long travel distances for patients from the Moorlands to Stafford Hospital – The 
specific number of patients affected by this were not known. There would always be 
a need for patients to travel to receive specialist services.   

Improvement of the financial position and the impact to patients – The deficit had 
already reduced, the rate at which this was going to reduce had now accelerated. 
The Hospital would take a patient centred approach, be run by front line clinicians 
and there would be a focus around staff ownership. The reduction in costs would not Page 6



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 12 February 2020

5

have an impact on services or patients. Theatre productivity would increase, and 
outpatient clinics needed to be filled to capacity. Joint procurement and back 
office/support functions would be seen. 

Brexit and staffing – The extent of the numbers of European staff who had returned 
home due to this was not at the level expected. The NHS had stopped recruitment 
from Europe and was now recruiting from further afield. New apprenticeship 
schemes had been introduced, visits to schools and career fayres had taken place.  

Increased admittance to hospital/bed blocking due to reduced number of community 
beds & how these beds were financed – The RSUH had not seen an increase in 
admittance of patients from care homes. However, work needed to be done, 
nursing/care home staff required more support and these jobs should be made more 
attractive. It was confirmed that the UHNM shared the costs of the beds at the 
Haywood and Bradwell Hospital with the MPFT last winter, but this wouldn’t be the 
case this year.

Coronavirus – The Hospital received guidance from Public Health England, 
emergency procedures and a plan was in place. 

Discussion also took place around the fire in the new building, children’s hospital 
status, staff retention, provision of mental health assessment rooms within A&E and 
family accommodation. A member of the Panel thought that the appointment system 
and transfer of patients between wards required improvement.

Following the fire in one of the hospital buildings, Members were assured that 
appropriate measures had now been put in place. 

Members complimented the front line staff for their excellent work at the Hospital, 
and the Chair passed on her thanks to Tracy Bullock for the informative 
presentation.

DECIDED: That the presentation be NOTED.

76 WEST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE - MARK DOCHERTY 
(EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR). (VERBAL UPDATE)

Councillor Jones had declared a Pecuniary Interest and left the meeting.

At the request of the Panel, a representative from the WMAS was in attendance at 
the meeting, to outline the recent decision to remove the Rapid Response Vehicles 
from the fleet.

Firstly, the officer gave an overview of the WMAS. This included statistical data and 
members were advised that the service had the highest performance in the county 
and hit all of its targets.

It was explained that the Rapid Response Vehicles would be removed from the fleet 
by the end of March 2020 and replaced with ambulance vehicles .As a paramedic 
would be part of the crew for each ambulance, back up vehicles would not be 
required, and this was the quickest way to transport a patient to a specialist centre. 
This operating model provided vast operational efficiencies and there would be an 
additional 250 paramedics by the end of the year.

Page 7



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 12 February 2020

6

The What3Words App was demonstrated to members, which enabled the service to 
establish the exact location of a person who required assistance.

Members had the opportunity to raise their concerns and ask questions. The main 
issue being that no consultation had taken place, and it was felt that the replacement 
ambulance vehicles wouldn’t be able to reach patients located in the rural areas as 
quickly as the Rapid Response Vehicles. Members wanted assurance that the 
response times to patients in the Moorlands wouldn’t reduce and had previously 
requested the statistical data on this. 

The WMAS officer recognised the concerns of the rural community and gave 
assurance that this model provided a robust response to patients and clinical 
outcomes were continually measured and monitored. The decision had been made 
and would not be reviewed.

Mark Doherty was thanked for his attendance at the meeting.

DECIDED:That the updated be NOTED.

77 WORK PROGRAMME.

DECIDED: That the Panel’s Work Programme for 2019/20 be agreed, subject to, the 
following items being added:

1) How the Council can empower people to take responsibility of their health and 
wellbeing

2) Provision of defibrillators

The meeting closed at 6.15 pm

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 8



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 22 JULY 2020
PRESENT: Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) 

Councillors C J S Atkins, M Bowen, B Cawley, M A Deaville, 
K Flunder, M Gledhill, G Heath, I Herdman, T Holmes, K Hoptroff, 
K J Jackson, J T Jones, L Page, S E Ralphs MBE, T Riley and 
L Swindlehurst

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor A White – Chair SCC Health & Wellbeing Committee
Dr. Richard Harling – SCC
Mr. M Trillo      -  Executive Director SMDC
Mr. A Stokes   -  Acting Chief Executive Officer SMDC
Mrs. T Cooper – Head of OD & Transformation SMDC
Mr. L Vernon   - Senior Officer, Governance & Member Support
Mr. P Trafford  - Democratic & Community Services Officer

78 COVID-19 LOCAL OUTBREAK CONTROL PLAN

Councillor Hughes introduced the 2 attendees from Staffs County Council – Cllr. 
Alan White (Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing) and Dr. Richard Harland and 
asked that questions be reserved until the end of their presentation.

Cllr. White thanked members for the invitation to address them, stating that the 
information to be imparted was needed to understand what was going on.

Dr. Harland introduced a presentation detailing the Local Outbreak Control Plan. The 
current rate of new infections per day stood at 10 per day. There were 3 potential 
scenarios:-

1. Best case (Green) – low level of transmission with occasional outbreaks 
(Care Homes, Schools, Businesses or defined small communities);

2. Middle case (Amber) – Extended community transmission in particular areas 
of the country requiring a local lockdown;

3. Worst case (Red) – Extended community transmission across the country 
requiring a national lockdown.

There were 7 elements to the control plan:-

1. Surveillance;
2. Identification of outbreaks;
3. Response;
4. Management of outbreaks;
5. Governance;
6. Communications;
7. Local lockdowns. Page 9



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 July 2020

2

There were currently 70 to 80 outbreaks across the county.

The National Contain Framework gave 4 areas:-

1. Areas with low levels of COVID-19 infections;
2. Areas of concern;
3. Areas requiring enhanced support;
4. Areas of intervention – Leicester was the 1st example of this.

Cllr. White confirmed that he was the Chair of the Local Outbreak Control Board 
(LOCB). He encouraged local-led solutions where possible.

Members raised queries as follows (Responses in brackets):-

 Has Staffordshire used the new legislative powers allowing for national 
support? (Not yet, the main concentration so far has been in the North West);

 Low numbers of infection could lead to complacency, requiring a balance to 
be struck. (This was a careful balance – so far under control due to 
compliance. Clear need to remind.)

 3 out of 4 pubs visited were using the ‘Track & Trace’ system. Any resources 
available for spot checks?(This worked to about 50 – 65% efficiency. SCC 
could help when notified of areas of non-compliance. Resources were coping 
so far, with specific outbreaks ongoing.)

 How was Care Home testing progressing in terms of receipt of results? Were 
there plans to state the person's ethnic background in the results? (Residents 
were tested 4 weekly, staff weekly. SCC were still not receiving results 
directly, they were having to contact the Care Home – a cumbersome 
process. Ethnicity was starting to be seen, though this was not complete. It 
was important to tailor any responses to the circumstances.)

 Could the information in the presentation be passed on to Town / Parish 
Councils? (We’re working on making part of it public.)

 As a way of alleviating anxiety in the elderly, when would testing of the over 
65’s start? (There was no intention to ‘mass test’. Given the limitations of 
testing and the changing picture, this may lead to increased anxiety. It was 
still not known whether the presence of antibodies equated to immunity. 
There was only a slim chance of having a vaccine available this year.)

 Were carers in the community being routinely tested? (No. If they went 7 days 
without symptoms after contacting someone with COVID they were able to 
return to work.)

 Was there any correlation to occupation amongst those infected – ex miners 
for example? (Caution was needed regarding medical confidentiality. A 
correlation was clear in a higher risk of health complications in lower income 
areas due to the poorer health level. Also, more densely populated areas 
carried a higher risk.)

 With pandemics historically such as Spanish Flu, the 2nd wave was the real 
killer. What preparations were being made for that scenario? (There was 
anxiety for the oncoming winter. Vaccines were available against Flu but not 
COVID. Hospitals were being made ready. The situation was very uncertain 
and being closely monitored. There was a clear need to encourage people to 
eat healthily and lose any extra weight.)

  Cllr. Mark Deaville emphasized the 3 main roles of the local members in 
assisting the LOCB – a) give assurance, b) pass down information, c) feed Page 10



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 July 2020

3

back to the LOCB. He confirmed that Cllrs. Atkins Jones and himself would 
act as a conduit for information in either direction. (Cllr. White confirmed the 
importance of local information.)

  Was it worth getting the Flu vaccine early, as there appeared to be 
insufficient stocks to do so? (Supplies of the vaccine were controlled 
nationally – SCC had no influence over this.)

Cllr. Ralphs confirmed the importance of good communication. Whilst it was likely to 
be 1 – 2 decades before we could stop being frightened about COVID, it was also 
important to convey a message of hope and reassurance, particularly about visiting 
hospital. 

In conclusion, the Chair thanked Cllr. White & Dr. Harland for their contributions and 
affirmed that it was up to elected members to reassure residents.  

The meeting closed at 8.30 am

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 10 August 
2020 

 
Present: Jeremy Pert (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Philip Atkins, OBE 
Adam Clarke 
Tina Clements 
Janet Eagland 
Ann Edgeller 
Richard Ford 
Maureen Freeman 
 

Phil Hewitt 
Jill Hood 
Barbara Hughes 
Paul Northcott (Vice-Chairman) 
Kath Perry, MBE 
Bernard Peters 
 

 
 
 
Apologies: Charlotte Atkins, Julie Cooper, Janet Johnson, Dave Jones, David Leytham, 
Ross Ward and Ian Wilkes 
 
PART ONE 
 
14. Quorum 
 
The Chairman verified that the meeting was quorate. 
 
15. Declarations of Interest 
 
Mr. Bernard Peters declared an interest in all matters included on the Agenda as they 
related to University Hospitals of Derby and Burton NHS Foundation Trust owing to his 
appointment on the Council of Governors.  
 
16. Minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2020 
 
That, subject to (i) the list of attendances being amended to include the name of Mrs. 
Barbara Hughes; (ii) Dr. Olubukola (Buki) Adeyemo being recorded as a representative 
of North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust and not Midlands Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust and; (iii) Minute No. 10 paragraph 10 (x) being amended to:- 
 
 “suicide rates in the County were currently at levels similar to those experienced prior to 
the Pandemic. Measures to prevent suicide and self-harming had been given a greater 
priority by central government and Staffordshire had been involved in piloting a new 
model of care which was now being rolled-out nationally;”, 
 
the minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2020 be confirmed and signed by the 
Chairman.       
 
17. Membership Changes following Annual Council Meeting 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

- 2 - 
 

 
The Chairman highlighted changes made to the Committee’s membership following the 
Annual meeting of the County Council on 23 July 2020.  
 
In addition, Mr. John Cooper, the County Councillor for Newcastle – Bradwell County 
Electoral Division would be invited to attend future meetings of the Committee as an 
observer. Mr. Cooper had been co-opted onto Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough 
Council’s Health, Wellbeing and Partnerships Scrutiny Committee from the County 
Council in order to provide a communication and co-ordination link between the two 
Authorities on matters of health.    
 
18. Backlog of Hospital Appointments arising from the 2020 Covid-19 
Pandemic 
 
The Committee considered a joint PowerPoint presentation/report (slides attached at 
Appendix A to the signed minutes) by the Chief Executive of University Hospitals of 
North Midlands NHS Trust (UHNM), Chief Executive Officer of University Hospitals of 
Burton and Derby NHS Foundation Trust (UHDB), Chief Executive of Royal 
Wolverhampton NHS Trust (RWT) and Accountable Officer, Staffordshire Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) regarding the backlog of hospital appointments arising 
from the 2020 Covid-19 pandemic in Staffordshire. 
 
Tracy Bullock (Chief Executive) and Paul Bytheway (Chief Operating Officer) from 
UHNM were present at the meeting. 
 
Duncan Bedford (Executive Managing Director) and Sharon Martin (Executive Chief 
Operating Officer) from UHDB were present at the meeting. 
 
Gwen Nuttall (Chief Operating Officer) from Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust was 
present at the meeting. 
 
Lynn Millar (Director of Primary Care) and Marcus Warnes (Accountable Officer) from 
Staffordshire CCGs were present at the meeting. 
 
Mary Porter (Lead, Child Health Information Service) from NHS England was present at 
the meeting. 
 
Jennie Collier (Managing Director, Staffordshire & Stoke-on-Trent Care Group) and Sue 
Garland (Service Manager, Universal and School Aged Immunisation Service) from 
Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust were present at the meeting.  
 
The outbreak of the virus had placed huge pressure on the NHS both in terms of 
resources and maintaining the delivery of essential services whilst complying with 
guidance on social distancing and infection control. Members had previously expressed 
concern regarding the impact of the pandemic on Primary and Secondary Care in 
specific areas including:- (i) Cancer emergency two week wait backlog (including 
investigations and endoscopy); (ii) Chemotherapy, Radiotherapy and Surgery backlog 
for existing Cancer patients in treatment at the time of lockdown; (iii) Routine surgery 
backlog particularly in orthopaedics (hips and knees); (iv) Cataract surgery backlog; (v) 
Cancer screening backlog including breast cervix and colorectal; (vi) Childhood 

Page 14



 

- 3 - 
 

immunisation programme; (vii) Coronary bypass and angioplasty backlog; (viii) Routine 
out-patient review backlog; (xi) Chronic disease management review backlog and; (x) 
Primary care capacity. Therefore, the Committee invited the various representatives of 
Health to outline their performance in the above-mentioned areas since lockdown and 
explain the steps they were taking to address areas of particular concern/backlogs and 
restore the proper functioning of services as necessary. 
 
The Committee were provided with comprehensive background statistical and graphical 
information from the Trusts/CCGs in advance of the meeting (Appendix A) which also 
gave context and set out the measures taken following the imposition of lockdown in 
March 2020. A co-ordinated presentation was then given by Tracy Bullock on behalf of 
all three Acute Trusts and Staffordshire CCGs during which she outlined:- (i) 
background and Department of Health and national NHS response to the pandemic; (ii) 
the six priorities contained in Trusts’ Long-Term Plans which had been accelerated 
owing to the effect of the pandemic; (iii) measures included in ‘Phase 3’ (requirement for 
recovery of services to March 2021) of the emergency; (iv) the whole system approach 
being adopted towards the recovery at national, regional and sub-regional levels; (v) the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on key services together with further headline 
statistics eg 50% reduction in type 3 and 5 urgent care activity and 55-63% reduction in 
delivery of outpatient first appointments; (vi) key risks and challenges associated with 
restoration and recovery; (v) Trusts’ restoration strategies; (vi) the extra support being 
provided to the NHS’s workforce during the pandemic and; (v) strategic challenges 
presented by the Covid-19 in the medium and long terms. 
 
Members then gave detailed scrutiny to the information received from the Trusts and 
CCGs holding them to account for their responses to the crisis to date, seeking 
clarification and asking questions where necessary.  
 
With regard to the use of buildings, Health explained that services were being spread 
across sites in order to make best use of resources and facilitate recovery whilst 
adhering to social distancing guidelines.  Many staff had retrained to enable them to 
provide resilience in areas other than their usual placements and representatives of 
UHDB gave the example of orthopaedic theatre nurses working on wards. In addition, 
they were looking to re-open their community sites which had been closed during 
lockdown, under their recovery plans. 
 
The representative of MPFT acknowledged that managing their estate during lockdown 
had presented a significant challenge for the Trust. However, they had sought to 
maximise home visits where appropriate and cited dementia assessments as an 
example. The Chief Executive of UHNM spoke for Health when she said that they 
recognised that the disruption to services during the pandemic was inconvenient and 
stressful for many patients but home visits helped to keep waiting times for 
appointments to a minimum in these circumstances. 
 
In response to concerns expressed by a Member regarding support available for key 
health workers during the pandemic, the Chief Executive from UHNM explained that her 
Trust maintained close links with local mental health Trusts in order to provide specialist 
care/advice where necessary. In addition, various wellbeing initiatives had been 
undertaken internally to ensure that clinicians and administrative/managerial staff were 
properly cared for in order to maintain services where possible. However, whilst risk 

Page 15



 

- 4 - 
 

assessments were routinely undertaken for vulnerable staff, a disproportionate number 
had been directly affected by the virus and its wider consequences. She also confirmed 
that staff were being given the opportunity to work from home where possible. These 
arrangements would continue until social distancing guidelines had been lifted. The 
CCGs Accountable officer added that most staff within his organisations had been 
instructed to work from home during lockdown with few exceptions. Consequently, their 
sickness absence rate had declined enabling greater organisational and service 
efficiencies to be made.    
 
The representatives of CCGs also outlined the pro-active measures being undertaken to 
engage with Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities in respect of Covid-
19 and seasonal flu vaccinations (which had been maintained during lockdown). 
Specific plans had been made in respect of these groups and local teams were working 
closely with community representatives. A representative of UHDB added that the 
Trust’s BAME Working Group (chaired by their Chief Executive Officer) had established 
good working relationships with the local South Asian community who had been 
disproportionately affected by the virus.     
 
The Member went on to raise further concerns about those with Type 1 and 2 Diabetes 
and the need to give special re-assurance and advice to people in these and other high-
risk groups. 
 
In response to a question from another Member, a representative of MPFT spoke of the 
significant impact the virus had had on the School Aged Immunisation Programme in the 
County. However, whilst the Programme had been suspended during lockdown owing to 
the closure of many schools, the Trust were making great efforts to restore the service 
during the recovery phase, including identification of suitable third-party venues where 
vaccinations could to undertaken. However, notwithstanding these efforts, the service 
were not expecting to have fully caught up with the backlog until approximately August 
2021/at the end of the recovery period.  
 
A Member expressed his thanks and paid tribute to the work of the Trusts and CCGs 
during the 2020 covid-19 pandemic and said that he was re-assured by the information 
he had received during the meeting. He referred to the County Council’s 
Communications (Comms) Team and the local knowledge they had acquired of the 
County which might be useful to the NHS in their health promotion work. In reply, 
UHNM’s Chief Executive confirmed that they had previously worked closely with Comms 
Leads at many local authorities and would have regard to Staffordshire’s, in the future, 
as necessary. The CCG’s Accountable Officer agreed that joint working with the County 
Council had assisted in tackling the local Covid-19 spike which had recently occurred in 
Stone.  The Director of Health and Care added that the Authority’s Communications 
Programme in respect of seasonal flu had been brought forward and meetings already 
held with NHS England regarding extending coverage of the scheme to include the over 
50 age group and Year 7 pupils. 
 
A Member expressed serious concern about recent press reports regarding suspension 
services to cancer patients. He therefore asked health how these critical services would 
be re-instated as soon as possible and referred to the anxiety caused to patients and 
their families by extended delays in receiving appointments. In response the 
representatives of all Trusts confirmed that services to cancer patients remained a high 

Page 16



 

- 5 - 
 

priority although many challenges were being experienced system wide. However, all 
cancer patients had been contacted in some way during lockdown and those who had 
received a clear diagnosis had been dealt with appropriately. Performance data in 
respect of waiting times from referral to diagnosis during July 2020 were expected to be 
published in the near future and would be shared with the Committee, as necessary. 
The representative of RWT explained that her Trust had been using their Cannock 
Hospital site for endoscopy procedures during lockdown which had provided an 
additional diagnosis stream. However, the longest waits were currently being 
experienced in their neurology department. Therefore, the Trust were undertaking 
training of an additional consultant in the use of robotic surgery which would help to 
reduce this backlog. The representatives of UHDB added that whilst performance 
against cancer wait targets had been good pre-Covid, unfortunately, this had declined 
since lockdown. However, their Trust were actively engaging with patients in order to 
provide re-assurance and the situation was improving following implementation of the 
restoration and recovery phase. With regard to two-week referrals, the number of 
patients seen by their Trust had declined since March although this was now starting to 
improve. 
 
In response to a request for further clarification from another Member regarding patients 
who failed to attend appointments at clinics and the alternative measures being 
implemented to contact them, the representatives of CCGs cited their good record in 
embedding digital solutions within General Practice (GP) surgeries. 95% of all 
Staffordshire general practice surgeries had held online patient consultations during 
lockdown with the aid of Personal Computers supplied by the CCGs. However, whilst 
access to GPs had been maintained, Health were anxious to return to face to face 
appointments where necessary. It was hoped that some of the lessons learned during 
the pandemic could be used to provide flexible access to GPs in the future. The 
representatives from UHDB added that whilst consultants at their Trust were gradually 
gaining confidence in the use of virtual technology, face to face appointments continued 
to be held where possible. In addition, they spoke of the joint working which had been 
undertaken with GP leads in order to provide outpatient follow-up appointments and 
hoped that the positive consequences of the pandemic in the area of virtual technology 
could be sustained once the national crisis had passed. The representatives of UHDB 
highlighted the particular challenges they had encountered with holding consultations by 
telephone owing to the high numbers of residents with only a limited use of English, in 
the locality. However, the feedback they had received from patients during this time had 
been encouraging and they were confident services continued to improve.   
 
Members stressed the importance of services to elderly residents during this time and 
reminded Health to have careful regard to the needs of this group.    
 
Discussion then turned to the planning/logistics being undertaken by Health in advance 
of a Covid-19 vaccine being made available. A Member highlighted the County Council’s 
Covid-19 Support Fund which could be used to help mobilize communities in due 
course. 
 
The Chairman then thanked all the representatives of Health for their attendance, an 
interesting and informative presentation and the opportunity to provide constructive 
scrutiny for the benefit of residents of the County. 
 

Page 17



 

- 6 - 
 

RESOLVED – (a) That the joint report/presentation be received and noted. 
 
(b) That the impact of the 2020 Covid-19 Pandemic on the backlog of hospital 
appointments be monitored closely and that further scrutiny of health Partners be 
undertaken at the appropriate time, as necessary.  
 
                        
 
           
 
19. Work Programme 2020/21 
 
The Committee considered a rolling Work Programme for 2020/21 (Appendix B to the 
signed minutes). 
 
During their discussion Members cited the following issues/topics for scrutiny at future 
meetings:- (i) Community First Responders – update from West Midlands Ambulance 
Service University NHS Foundation Trust; (ii) Focus on Young and Older People; (iii) 
Support and Joint Working between Public Health and the NHS; (iv) Focus on Mental 
Health; (v) Focus on Diabetes; (vi) National and Local Social Care Green Papers and; 
(vii) Backlog of Hospital Appointments arising from the 2020 Covis-19 Pandemic – 
Update from Staffordshire Secondary Care Providers and Clinical Commissioning 
Groups. 
 
The Chairman sought agreement from the Committee for him and the two Vice-
Chairmen to meet informally to consider their Work Programme in greater detail, make 
proposals and report back to their next meeting, as appropriate. He emphasised the 
need for flexibility in the Programme in order to take account of matters raised at short 
notice arising from the 2020 Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the Chairman and Vice-Chairman consider their 2020/21 Work 
Programme in detail at an informal meeting on a date and at a time to be arranged. 
 
(b) That the Chairman and Vice-Chairman have regard to the above-mentioned 
suggested issues/topics for scrutiny at their informal meeting referred to in (a) above. 
 
(c) That the updated Work Programme 2020/21 be brought their next meeting for 
approval.    
 
    
 
20. District and Borough Health Scrutiny Activity 
 
The Chairman invited the District/Borough Council representatives present to make oral 
reports of the health scrutiny activity which they had undertaken, since their previous 
meeting, in line with the Code of Joint Working Arrangements – Health. 
 
The representatives of Stafford Borough and Staffordshire Moorlands District Councils 
said that their respective Committees/Panels had not met since the previous update 
reports were considered. Whilst the representative of Cannock Chase District Council 

Page 18



 

- 7 - 
 

said that her Authority’s Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee had not met again since the 
previous report, the Authority’s Corporate Review Scrutiny Committee had temporarily 
assumed responsibility for health matters during the current Covid-19 pandemic. She 
had also attended a weekly virtual meeting of the Authority’s Corporate Management 
Team and Group Leaders at which they had allocated additional funding in support of 
foodbanks in the District. In addition, their Environmental Health Team were actively 
engaged in providing advice to residents on social distancing measures.  
 
The representative of Tamworth Borough Council reported that his Authority’s Health & 
Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee was to meet on 14 July 2020 at which they would 
consider the Council’s response to the 2020 Covid-19 pandemic. In addition, the letter 
which had been sent by the previous Chairman of Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee on 15 July 2020 regarding the operation of the standing joint working 
arrangements in health had been positively received his Authority looked forward to 
strengthening the operation of these arrangements, in the near future, for the benefit of 
residents of the Borough/County. 
 
The representative of East Staffordshire Borough Council said that his Authority were 
currently focusing on a review of Sports Development. In addition representatives of 
University Hospitals of Derby and Burton NHS Trust and Clinical Commissioning 
Group(s) would be invited to the next meeting of their Scrutiny Community 
Regeneration, Environment and Health and Well Being Committee regarding the recent 
merger and local General Practitioner services, respectively.     
 
The Chairman informed them of an emailed letter he had received from Mrs. P Wood of 
Leek Health Campaign Group on 5 August 2020 regarding the future of Leek Hospital. 
He said that he would reply to Mrs. Wood informing her that a copy would be forwarded 
to the Clinical Commissioning Groups’ Accountable Officer for attention and any 
necessary action owing to their role in ensuring adequate capacity in local health 
services, going forward. 
 
In addition, he informed them of correspondence he had received from Loggerheads 
Parish Council regarding Community First Responders and their concerns over the 
recent changes made by West Midlands Ambulance Service University NHS Foundation 
Trust which the Committee had scrutinised at their 8 June 2020 meeting. He went on to 
say that he would reply informing them their concerns had been noted and that an 
update report by the Trust was due to be made to the Committee at a meeting towards 
the end of 2020.    
 
RESOLVED –That the reports/oral reports be received and noted.  
 
     
 
 
21. Date of Next Meeting - Monday 14 September 2020 at 10.00 am, Virtual/on-
line 
 
RESOLVED – That the date, time and venue of their next meeting be noted.  
 
 

Page 19



 

- 8 - 
 

 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 20



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities @mpftnhs 

mpftnhs 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Leek Moorlands District Council - 14th Oct 2020 
Jennie Collier – Managing Director of Staffordshire and Stoke-on-
Trent Care Group  

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

Responding to COVID-19 

• COVID-19 provoked rapid change to NHS services. 
• As advised by NHSE/I MPFT temporarily stepped down some of its 

non-urgent services.  
• All services in the Moorlands have now been restored. However, there 

is some backlog. We are working hard to resolve this.  
• To support the health care system MPFT created capacity for COVID-19 

positive patients in community hospitals. To date these beds have not 
been required. This capacity remains in place and will be used only if 
required for COVID-19 positive patients. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 22



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

Responding in the Moorlands   
• During the pandemic the Community Nursing team in Leek Moorlands worked 

collaboratively with Park Medical Centre and commissioners.  
• Together they assessed the potential risks and unmet needs of patients.  
• They focused on providing care to those who needed it most, such as patients 

at the end of life.  
• Together they considered factors such as surge in demand, reduced capacity 

for face-to-face visits and the difficult clinical decisions which would be 
required during a time of significant pressure within health care services.  

• This enabled professionals to use their skills and experience to deliver quicker 
access to care, work more efficiently and remove duplication.   

P
age 23



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

COVID-19 Rehab 

P
age 24



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

Minor Injuries Unit 
• Minor Injuries Unit was temporarily closed in March 2020 based on the 

low number of people attending the service and staffing challenges. 
• Data demonstrates attendance fell month-on-month and had halved by 

March. 
• The Trust is committed to reopening the Minor Injuries Unit when it is 

safe to do so.  
• People in North Staffordshire with minor non life-threatening injury and  

illness should get treatment from Haywood Hospital Walk-in Centre.  
• Anyone with life threatening injury or illness should attend the 

Emergency Department at Royal Stoke Hospital.  
 
 

 
 

 

 

P
age 25



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

Clinics moving into Leek Moorlands Community 
Hospital  
• A number of clinics are proposing to move from Leek Health Centre 

into Leek Moorland Community Hospital during October 2020 
• Paediatric Speech & Language Therapy 
• Continence Service 
• Looked After Children  
• Orthoptist (provided by University Hospitals of North Midlands) 

 

• Moves will optimise the outpatient clinics within the hospital and 
support improved utilisation of estate with the future plans to 
incorporate services into the hub. 
 
 

P
age 26



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

Integrated care in the 
Moorlands  

P
age 27



National Hospital Discharge Policy  

8 

P
age 28



Integrated Care Teams in the Moorlands  

• Integrated care teams meetings and gold standard 
framework meetings (for palliative and end of life patients) 
continue to take place via MS Teams with positive feedback 
from all partners.  

• Plans are in place to implement a named nurse monthly 
caseload review with each GP practice as well as regular 
practice manager meetings.  
 

9 

P
age 29



• During the COVID-19 pandemic patients were reviewed and prioritised. 
• Where appropriated patients were asked to self-manage aspects of their 

care either independently or in partnership with health care professionals 
and/or their family/carers.  

• Plans are now in place to implement a self-care model which can be used 
on a range of different patients and care needs.  

• Anecdotally there has been a range of benefits including greater 
independence and increased awareness of overall health and wellbeing.  

• The Clinical Director of the PCN is supportive of the self-care model and 
work to roll the model out across the PCN will begin shortly.  
 
 

10 

Self-Care Model 

P
age 30



www.mpft.nhs.uk @mpftnhs Together we are making life better for our communities 

QUESTIONS? 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2020/21

Date Items for Agenda
22 July 2020 Special Meeting  - Coronavirus Health Data

14 October 2020 CCG & MPFT – Covid-19 &  Community Hospitals
Tony Bullock - Public Health Initiatives - Drugs and Alcohol Overview for Members

9 December 2020

3 March 2021

Mental health first aid training for staff and councillors
Dementia Care Working Group Update Report – TBC
Public Health Initiatives – Mental Health Trailblazer – Nicola Bromage
Provision of defibrillators

TBC

How the Council can empower people to take responsibility of their health and wellbeing
Mental Health– North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust - invited

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meetings.
	Draft Minutes 22 July 20

	4 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee.
	8 Covid-19 and Community Hospitals Update. (2:15 p.m.)
	Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
	Responding to COVID-19
	Responding in the Moorlands 	
	COVID-19 Rehab
	Minor Injuries Unit
	Clinics moving into Leek Moorlands Community Hospital 
	Integrated care in the Moorlands 
	National Hospital Discharge Policy 
	Integrated Care Teams in the Moorlands 
	Self-Care Model
	QUESTIONS?

	10 Work Programme. (3:30 p.m.)

